
 C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\8OPLNE8H\7-5-16 Meeting 
Minutes.docx  1                                                                          
 

Parks, Tourism and Economic Development Committee Minutes 

Tuesday, July 5, 2016 

 
1. Call to Order: The Parks, Tourism and Economic Development Committee meeting was called to 

order at 9:08 AM (within the Joint Meeting with the Executive Finance Committee) in the County 
Board Room of the Trempealeau County Courthouse located at 36245 Main St, Whitehall, WI by 
Jon Schultz, Chair.  

2. Certification of Open Meeting Law Requirements: Kirstie Heidenreich certified that the Open 
Meeting Law Requirements have been met.  

3. Roll Call of Committee Members: Members present: Jon Schultz, Jeanne Nutter, Jean 
Galasinski, Chuck Walek, Curt Skoyen, and Sarah Ecker. Also present were Department of Land 
Management staff Kevin Lien, Becky Arneson, Kirstie Heidenreich, Ann Hempel and Tess 
Thompson. Members absent: Michelle Haines and Ron McKernan.  

4. Adoption of Agenda: Jon Schultz stated that this was satisfied within the joint meeting.  
5. Adoption of Minutes (6-13-16): Motion to adopt the minutes from June 13, 2016 by Chuck 

Walek; seconded by Jean Galasinski. Motion carried.  
6. Trempealeau Trails - Travis Mossman: Travis stated that the County sign truck has been broken 

on and off for months so there are not trail many signs up yet. He said the County has 300 signs to 
install on the Highway 53 project on priority before they can work on the Trempealeau Trails 
signage. After discussion, Jeanne Nutter asked Curt Skoyen to get the sign installation on the next 
Highway Department agenda, as Curt is also on the Highway Committee. Jon Schultz said that he 
will try to speak with Dave Lyga as well to get the issue resolved and the Committee will do what 
they can. Travis stated that there are over 400 signs that still need to be installed.  

7. Approval of Committee Mission Statement: Jon Schultz stated that he met with Pat Malone and 
put together a draft of the Parks, Tourism and Economic Development Committee’s mission 
statement. Jon said that the Committee can take a month to think it over and then next month 
action will be taken.  

8. Discussion and Possible Action of Job descriptions and Department Oversight: Kevin Lien 
recapped what Elsa Kulig, HR director presented at the last meeting: Elsa summarized that the 
Committee really has four different options at this point: Option #1: Create a separate department 
that address Parks, Tourism and Economic Development. Option #2: Have Parks, Tourism and 
Economic Development be a branch within an existing department such as Land Management and 
create a Supervisor position there, yet also utilize existing staff in that department. Option #3: Put 
parks in Land Management and separate out Tourism and Economic Development. Option #4: Do 
research about bringing in a professional and have them come present the Committee with options. 
Elsa suggested getting someone with a marketing background for the Tourism needs. Jon Schultz 
stated that so far, Land Management has done a great job with the parks. He said the idea of 
bringing in a consultant to do the economic development projects as needed seems appealing. 
Jeanne Nutter said that the vision in her head would to have the parks stay within Land 
Management, and any new employee would be under Kevin Lien’s direction. Kevin stated that 



 C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\8OPLNE8H\7-5-16 Meeting 
Minutes.docx  1                                                                          
 

what he’s experienced this year is that his department has learned a lot and staff has done an 
excellent job with map-making, planning, book-keeping, and registration. He said that more 
manpower at the park is needed in terms of labor on site. The Environment and Land Use 
Committee has been very gracious in allowing staff hours to be used for the Parks. He said in the 
future there needs to be two 29-hour a week positions so that the two staff can be alternating so 
that there is more presence at the park. Jeanne asked Kevin if he would envision hiring a director 
of Parks, Tourism, and Economic Development in his office. Kevin said that he does not think it’s 
anything that any one person could do; it has to be a joint effort. Jean Galasinski stated that Dick 
Miller let her know that he really wants Parks, Tourism, and Economic Development pushed in our 
County, so likely something needs to be separated out so that time is being devoted fairly to all of 
those things. Jon Schultz mentioned that currently Land Management has a County Surveyor who 
works one day a week, similar to a consultant, and that has worked well for them. Jean Galasinski 
said she would personally like to see someone hired and working under Land Management. Jon 
Schultz stated that the person would be the coordinator between Parks, Tourism, and Economic 
Development and someone could still be hired out as a consultant for tourism/economics if needed. 
DLM staff would still also be utilized. The new employee would be supervised by Kevin Lien; it 
would be a new branch within DLM with one employee. Jeanne said that the budget for the parks 
will need to be increased if the County truly wants to be able to provide parks, tourism, and 
recreation to its citizens. Jeanne Nutter made a motion to pursue Option #2 (to have Parks, 
Tourism and Economic Development be a branch within an existing department such as Land 
Management and create a Supervisor position there, yet also utilize existing staff in that 
department) and to work with Elsa Kulig on pursuing this option. Jean Galasinski seconded; 
motion carried.  

9. Report from CapX2020 Sub-Committee: Kevin stated that he, Jon, Becky, Kirstie, and Tess met 
at Pietrek Park to evaluate the Kloss Shelter and discuss remodeling needs so that the $73,000 of 
CapX2020 can be spent by the end of the year. He presented the Committee with a detailed report 
of their findings and said the group concluded that there is a need for a new steel roof, continual 
roof overhang of the same height, roll-up doors, new kitchen windows and cupboards, update the 
kitchen service area, and to create a utility room for the water heater and electric. Jeanne Nutter 
made a motion to move forward with getting need repairs done to the Kloss Shelter. Jean 
Galasinski seconded. Kevin mentioned that his department can move forward with getting bids 
from local contractors and if the Committee receives bids for slightly higher than $73,000, they 
should consider picking up the rest of the tab so that the project can be completed in its entirety. 
Motion carried.  

10. Ashley for the Arts Weekend Preparations: Becky Arneson stated that all 69 campsites are now 
booked for the Ashley for the Arts Weekend, along with group tent sites 1-5 which have multiple 
tents. She said this does not mean there are 69 units; many sites have multiple units on them. 
Becky asked the Committee if they wanted to consider opening up more non-surveyed campsites 
for the weekend, per Ashley’s request. She stated that Ashley is worried that there will not be 
enough campsites for all of their event attendees that are expecting to camp. Jeanne Nutter stated 
she is worried that it may compromise the integrity or quality of the campground if the volume of 
people there far exceeds what the park can hold an maintain with its number of bathrooms, 



 C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\8OPLNE8H\7-5-16 Meeting 
Minutes.docx  1                                                                          
 

facilities, etc. The Committee agreed that benefits of opening up more campsites do not exceed the 
risks and downfalls of an overcrowded campground.  

11. Approval for Camper Repair or Possible Sale: Kevin informed the Committee that due to 
extensive damages of the camper, Becky has looked in to getting it fixed and it is $80/hour labor 
with $50 investigation fee and the County would have to hire someone to haul it to the repair 
facility. Jeanne Nutter made a motion to place the camper on the state vehicle sale site in an effort 
to sell it and consider building a small structure in its place in the future. Jean Galasinski seconded 
it. Motion carried.  

12. Vehicle Sale/Purchase Update: Kevin stated he has been working on gathering the data needed to 
list both of the Park trucks on the state vehicle sale site in order to purchase another reliable 
vehicle for the Park. He stated he will further update the Committee next month.  

13. Camping privileges for Glen Goodsell: Jon Schultz stated that Glen Goodsell has been 
contacting various County Board Members regarding his camping privileges and wanted some 
clarification. Jon asked Kevin Lien to read the minutes from a past meeting regarding this issue. 
Kevin read from the minutes: “Motion by Bob Pietrek, seconded by Rob Reichwein to create free 
camping for Glen Goodsell for offering to put the new water line in for free.” Kevin said that there 
was no timeline stated; Glen received his free camping and it can be considered redeemed. Jeanne 
Nutter said she does not recall that vote but she does not think it was meant to be a lifetime of free 
camping; that would have been stated in the minutes. Jon Schultz made a motion that Glen 
Goodsell’s free camping has been satisfied and has now ended. Jeanne Nutter seconded. Motion 
carried.   

14. Priority List of Improvement and Maintenance Projects: Becky Arneson stated that the website 
creation is still in limbo at this point and we are still waiting to hear what package the County will 
purchase from ESRI before knowing if it can be used for a park website. Kevin stated that the 
Lower Shelter is still in need of window repairs. The park is also still in need of more fire rings 
and picnic tables. Gravel pads are also needed for the RV campsites, which should be worked in to 
next year’s budget. Kevin stated that many of these improvements can be partially budgeted in 
each year, so that the projects are slowly completed over time.  

15. Trempealeau County Scenic Byways Map – Land Records Staff: Kirstie Heidenreich reminded 
the Committee that there had been a public request for a scenic byways map, in an effort to 
increase tourism efforts in the county. Kirstie stated she had asked Ann Hempel if her and her staff 
would be interested in taking this on as a project. Ann was present and stated that they would love 
to create a Trempealeau County scenic byways map. Ann asked the Committee for guidance on 
what would be considered a scenic byway. Jeanne suggested using Olin Fimreite’s bus tour map as 
a basic starting point and tying in bike routes, etc. Sarah Ecker suggested trying to tie together 
using Travis Mossman’s app he has created to existing maps that are created to have some sort of 
conjoined effort with this. Jean said that she will check with Riverland Energy to see if they still 
donate tear-away maps that can be placed in businesses.  

16. Economic Development, Recreation, and Tourism Update: Jean stated that she can call Steve 
Peterson who is an expert in these areas and see if he can come in August or September to speak to 
the Committee. Sarah suggested having him speak at businesses throughout the County in the 
coming months and make those meeting special events to draw in business leaders, in an effort to 



 C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\8OPLNE8H\7-5-16 Meeting 
Minutes.docx  1                                                                          
 

increase economic development in the County. Jean also said that she knows other potential 
speakers who could speak in different parts of the county at these special types of events.  

17. Opportunity for Public Comments: No public comments.    
18. Set next meeting date: The next meeting will be on Monday, August 1st at 10:00 AM in the 

County Board Room of the Courthouse, directly following the joint meeting of Executive Finance 
and Parks, Tourism and Economic Development Committee at 9:00 AM.  

19. Adjourn: Meeting was adjourned at 12:23 PM by Jon Schultz.   

 

Submitted by: Kirstie Heidenreich, recording secretary 
 


